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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Rebort on the Autlit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Carnation Hotels Private Limited {"the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of Profit and
Loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the IND AS financials statement in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs} specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 32 of the financial statements, which sets out the Company’s assessment
of financial impact on account of COVID 19 pandemic situation. Based on the assessments, the
management has concluded that the Company will be able to meet all of its obligations as well as
recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included In the annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




JDP & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

In connection with ocur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the IND AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and aother
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

- completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterent, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Board of
Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statemehts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materlal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of thesa IND AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemeénts, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The
tisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasanableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast sighificant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
of, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1." Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Cther

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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{d)

—

{e

{f)

(g)

(h}

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
32, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this réport.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197{16} of the Act, as amended:

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. ‘

With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
pasition;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

fil. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or In the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity {“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe th_at
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the representations under sub-clause {i} and {ii) of Ruie 11{e}, as provided under (a) and

(b} above, contain any material misstaternent.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the year,

For JDP & Associates
Firm Registration No: 026828N
Chartered Accountants

b
A
/i

] Kumar
Partner N
Membership No:i 531072
UDIN: 22531072ALLEBF5846
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2022
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements™ of our report of even date :

(i) (a)}(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(ii}

(iii)

{iv)

™

(vi)

details and siteation of property, plant and equipment,

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper recotds showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)
(©)
(d)

©

(vii) (a)

(b}

(vii)

Property Plant and Equipment have been pliysically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification,

There is no immovable property held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has net revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2022,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not
provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(ili)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f} of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence,
not commented upon,

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company

The Commpany has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made. thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as presctibed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ statc insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for & period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues
which have not beéen deposited on account of any dispute.

‘The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books

of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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(ix) (a)

®)

(c)

(d)

{c)

®) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a}

(b)

(c)

(xdi) (a)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wiilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

The Company did not obtain any new term loans during the year and did not have any unutilized
term loans from earlier years, hence, the requirement to report on clause {ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. :

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company., :

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year. '

During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Commpanies Act, 2013 has
been filed by in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. :

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year,

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance With section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. Provisions of sections 177 is not applicable.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company:

ey
"‘I
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(xvi}(a)

(®)

(c)

(@

(xvil)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 34(A) to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that Company is net capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII
of the Companies Act {the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135
of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

For JDP & Associates
Firm Registration No: 026828N
Charte[ed Accountants

'

ol

o
Jatjty Kumar
Partner

Membership No.: 531072
UDIN: 22531072ALLEBF5846
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CARNATION HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Carnation Hotels Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company cansidering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting hased on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, Issired by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all materlal respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiai Reporting

Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibllity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial centrol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Cormpany considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Flnam:ial Reporting issued hy the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”,

For JOP & Associates
Firm Registration No: 626828N
Chart:erecl Accountants
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Membership No.: 531072 S
UDIN: 22531072ALLERF5846

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2022



Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Membership Ne, 531072 -

UDIN: 25 T8F LA L_Lé_'(;F_,‘»?‘i 6

Place * New Delhi
Date : May 25, 2022

Direcior
Din: 00002974

Place : New Delhi
Date © May 25, 2022

Director
Din, 00352890

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
R in lakhs Rsin lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4.70 50.98
Intangibie assets 4 1,116.51 1,478.94
Otber non-current assets 5 218.90 151.60
Deferred tax assets {net) 6 - 22.46
1,340.11 1,704.28
Current assets
-Financial assets 7
{i) Trade receivalbles 669,12 434.96
(ti) Cask and cash equivalents 2,34 2,58
(1) Loans 128.00 274.00
(iv) Other financial assets 84,19 70,77
Othier current assefs ) 162.45 383,70
1,046.10 1,162.01
Total Assets 2,386.21 2,866.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital ¢ 9.35 9.35
Other equity w 898.08 701,79
Total Equity - 908.33 71114
Liabilities
Won-corrent liabilities
Financial Habilities ) 11
(i) Barrowings 330.24 330,90
Provisions 12 5.92 588
Deferred tax liabilities {net) & 28.59 -
364.75 336.78
Current-liabilities
Financial liabilities i3
{1) Borrowings 987.57 1,598.37
(ii) Trade payables 22.02 3551
{iii) Other financial iiabilities - 97.92
Orther current Habilities 14 96,98 54.593
Provisions 12 6.56 11.94
1,113.13 1.818.37
Total Liabilities 1,477.88 2,155.15
Total Eguity and Liabilitics 2,386,21 2,866.20
Surmmary of significant accounting policies Z
‘The accompanying notes ave an integral part of the financial stawements.
As per our reporl of even dafe
For JOP & Associates For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Regislration No, 026828N Carnation Hotely Private Limited
Chartered Accountams
4
. A
Patadfa %‘ﬁmﬂi Kapil Sharma



Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lnkhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 15 1,189.7¢ 456.04
Other income 16 5,60 -
Total income 1,195,30 456,04
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 308.71 223,67
Other expenses 18 143.86 4529
Total expenses 453.57 268.96
Earnings hefore interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 741.73 187.08
Finance costs 19 124.73 145,94
Depreciation and amortization expense 20 370.80 343.28
Finance income 21 (17.1%) (32.23)
Profit/(loss) before tax 263.39 (269.91)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 16.35 -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - (14,44}
{3} Deferred tax 51.03 (31.29)

67.38 (65.73)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 196.01 (204.18)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent period:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 1.58 0.71
Income tax effect {0.40) -
Other Comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 1.18 0.71
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 197.19 (203.47)
Earnings per equity share;
(1) Basic 22 21,10 (21.77)
(2) Diluted 22 2110 Q1.77)
Suramary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Anancial statements.

As per aur report of even date

For JDP & Associates
Firm Registration No. 026828N
Charterad Accountants

'
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-~

Kumar

Partner
Membership No. 531072

Place : New Dethi
Date ; May 25, 2022

T GoviiT K eswani

Din; 00002974

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Carnation Hotels Private Limited

A

Kapil Sharma
Director
Din: 00352890



Carnation Hotels Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity sharés of INR 1 each issned, subscribed and

fully paid

As at April 1, 2020
Issue of share capital
As at March 31, 2021

Issue of share capital
As at March 31, 2022

B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2022

No. of shares

Amonnt
Rs, in lakhs

9,34,580 9.35
9,34,580 9.35
934,580 9.35

Rs. Inlakhs

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Capital reserve Retained Esrnings Total equity
Balance at Aprit 1, 2020 52.18 853.08 905.26
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (203.47) (203.47)
Balance at March 31, 2021 52.18 64961 701.79
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 197.19 197.19
Balance at March 31, 2022 52,18 846,80 895,98
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repert of even date

Far JDP & Associates
Firm Regisfraticn No. 026828N
Chartered Accountants
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Date : May 25, 2022
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Director
D¥in: 00002974
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Date : May 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Director
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Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Place ; New Delhi
Date : May 25, 2022

Din: 00002974

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 25,2022

Far the year exded For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Cash fiow from/ (used in) operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 263,39 {269.91)
Adjustments to reconcile profiti(ioss) before {ax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation éxpenses 370.80 34328
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) {17.18) (32.22)
Finance costs {including fair value change in financial instruments) 124.72 145,94
Net loss on sale of property plant and equipment 19.26 -
Provision for doubtfill debts 22,91 6.57
Advances written off 34,33 -
812.63 193,66
Working Capital Adjustment:
Change in trade receivables {291.40) 144.48
Change in trade payables (33.40) (3.69)
Change in loans and advances and other current assets 223,08 232
Change in liabilities and provisions {54.25) (2,334,22)
656,66 (1,996,85)
Income tax paid (net of refunds}) (83.32) 1747
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities 573.34 (1,979.38)
Investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equiptrent and Intangible assets - (0.25)
Proceeds from sale of property plant & equipment 18.65 -
Repayment of loan given to related parties 142.00 495,00
Interest received on income tax refund 1.94 3.33
Net Cash flow nsed in investing activities 162,59 498.08
" Financing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings {8.56) (8.75)
{Repayment of) /proceeds from short term borrowings (610.79) 1,582.68
Interest paid (116.82) (138.23)
Net Cash (used in)/ from fingancing activities (736.17) 1,435.70
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {0.25} (45.60)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.58 48.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2.34 2.58
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2,34 258
Balances with Banks in
Current accounts - -
Total cash and eash equivalents .34 2.58
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
As per our report of even date
For JDP & Associates TFor and on behaif of the Board of Direciors of
Firm Registration No, 026828N Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Charte{ed Accountants
J
e
-~ L
n Kumar atfmjali Govind Keswani Kapil Sharma
Partner Director Director

Din: 00352890
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Corporate Information

Carnation Hotels Private Limited {the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Deihi
110037.

The Company operates, manage and provide technical services to chain of hotels, motels,
resorts, restaurants, etc,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 25, 2022, '

Basis of preparation

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a historical cost or at amortised cost except for
the following assets and liabilities:

« Net defined benefit (asset)/liability
* Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or .
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

* & & @

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

e It is expecied to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

s It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Fereign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
statement of profit and loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of
profit and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based oh the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either;

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e - Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuuring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and undquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer, The management

- decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and

inputs to use for each case,

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies; For this analysis, the Valuation Committee verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or llablllty and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting pohcy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes,

» Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note23)
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 27)
'+ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 27)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Goods and Service Tax (GST)/ Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the
Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by
the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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Income from services
Revenues from management and consultancy contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period
of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing {inancial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance income
in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed and variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered, Variable
income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement,

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on transfer of title
from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investmeits.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured as the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside statement of profit and foss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the defeired tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. '
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

44 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of ‘accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if' any. Such cost includes its purchase primport duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and borrowing costs for fong-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met,

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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value of another asset.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule IT of Companies Act, 2013 on Straight
Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
(SLM)
Plant & Machinery 13 Years
Building 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipment’s 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years
Software 3 Years
License & franchise agreements 8 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant and
equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, Internally generated intangibles, excluding

. capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reﬂected in

profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrymg

pEEEN
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as below:

Intangible Assets Life
Softwares : 3 years
Franchise & license agreements § years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment at
each year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized,

_ Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. I any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating vnit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asget
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.
In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are 1'ecognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

@)

(k)

have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years, Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at
arevalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

_ Gleneral

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a prosent obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due io the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The

- Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a Hability after deducting the conttibution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates, Long term compensated
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per
projected unit credit method. '

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified
to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss on the earlier of'
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and _
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligatig)
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an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Net interest expense or income

The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the seftlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current lability

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initiad recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a}  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more informaticn on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are MeLmmn .
V
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a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cuimulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method,

Debt instrument at FVIPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt inéﬂuments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet} when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
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by Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

e} Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

¢ Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
¢ All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the ifistrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possibie default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:
¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably,
then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented
as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCL

Financial abilities

Initial recogrition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Habilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instrumentg =
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or-loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are

designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are

satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in

own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to

P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other

changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
- Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss,

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derccognised as welI as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to botrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the guarantee holder for a loss it incurs because the Company
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees issued by the group Company on behalf the Company are designated as ‘Insurance
Contracts’.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability arc substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(m)

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and labilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as aresult of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.
A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it
applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of
the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company
does not restate any previously recognised gams losses (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for;

Original
classification

Revised
classification

Accounting treatment

Amortised cost

FVTPL

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL

Amortised
Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on
the new gross carrying amount,

Amortised cost

FVTOCI

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.
EVTOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
' amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
Assets confinue to be measwed at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

FVTEL FVTOCI

FVTOCI FVTPL

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Redeemabie preference shares
Redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the
terms of the contract.

On issuance of the redeemable preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is n
extinguished on conversion or redemption. 225
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(n)

)

(P

@

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In ifts
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense finance
costs and tax expense.

Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respectlve hotel
properties. However, since all hotels have similarity in terms of products and services, customer
classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment, the individual hotels
qualify for aggregation. Thus, the management has considered aggregating all the hotels as one
reportable operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these financial statements
relate to the Company’s single operating segment.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- The profit attributable to owners of the Company
- By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year, if any.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account;

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs assoc1ated thh dilutive

_ potential equity shares, and

~ The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3 Property, plant and equipment Rs. in lakhs

Particulars, Office Furpiture Office equipments Computers Vehicles* Total

Cost or valuation

As at April 1, 2020 ¢.l6 0.27 331 80.11 83.85%
Additions - - (.26 - 0.26
As at March 31, 2021 0.16 0.27 3.57 80.11 84.11
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - - - 71.83 71.83
As at March 31, 2022 0.16 0.27 3.57 8.28 12.28
Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020 0.05 0.27 2.04 20.57 2293
Charge for the year 0.02 - 0.67 9.51 10.20
As at March 31, 2021 6.07 0.27 2.71 30.08 33.13
Charge for the year 0.02 - 0.48 7.87 8.37
Disposals . - - - 33,92 33.92
As at March 31, 2022 0.09 0.27 3.19 4.03 7.58
Net Book value

As at March 31, 2022 0.07 - 0.38 4.25 4.70
As at March 31,2021 0.09 - .86 50.03 50.98

Net book value As at Asat

March 31 2022 March 31, 2021

Plant, property and equipment 470 50.98

*Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicle acquired out of such loans

a) There is no change in the carrying value due to revaluation in any class of assets

4 Intangible Assets Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Software License & Total
franchise
agreements

Cost or valuation

As at April 1, 2020 242 1,900.00 1,902.42

Additions - - -

As at Mareh 31, 2021 2.42 1,900.00 1,902.42

Additions - - -

As at March 31, 2022 - 242 1,900.00 1,902,42

Amortisation and impairment

As at April 1, 2020 0.60 89.8¢ 90.40

Amortisation 0.52 332,56 333.08

As at March 31, 2021 1.12 422,36 423.48

Amortisation 0.52 361.91 362.43

As at March 31, 2022 1.64 754.27 785.91

Net Block

As at March 31, 2022 0.80 1.115.73

As at March 31, 2021 1,30 147764

a) There is no change in the carrying value due te revaluatien in any class of assets
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5 Other non-current assets

Advances ofher than capital advances
Others
Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation)

Total

6 Deferred tax liabilites/Deferred tax assets (Net)

Deferred tax liabilities

DTL on split accounting done for preference shares

Fixed assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortization charged for financial year

Deferred tax Liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the
current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss

DTA on ECL Created on trade recivables

Deferred tax Assets

Deferred tax (lability)/deferred tax asset (Net}

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
218.20 151,90
218.90 151.90
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs, In fakhs
8.31 10.29
39.46 5777
47.77 68.06
4.49 5.00
- 85.22
14.70 0.30
19.19 90,52
{28.59) 22.46

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2022 and

March 31, 2021

Accounting profit / (loss) before income tax

Tax rate

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17%
Effect of non-deductible expenses

Income tax charge/ (credit) in respect of sarlier year

(269.91)

263,39
25.17% 25.17%
66,29 (67.93)
1.09 2.58
- (0.38)
67.38 (65.73)
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7 Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables®

* refer note 34(D) for agewise ocutstanding of trade receivable

Break-up for trade receivables:
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Doubtful
Total trade receivables

(i) Cash and cash equivaients
Balance with banks
Cash on hand .

Cash at bank are non-interest bearing financial assets.

(iii) Loans*
Loan to related party**

*refer note 34(C) for loans granted to promoter, director, KMP and other related
parties.
Loan carries an interest @9% and is payable on demand

(iv) Other financial assets

Security deposits
Interest accrued but not due

Break up of current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits

Loan to related party
Interest accrued but not due

Total current financial assets carried at amortised cost
8  Other eurrent assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
= Others
Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Unbilled revenue
Prepaid expenses

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs. Inlakhs |
669.12 434.96
669,12 434,96
669,12 43496
24,08 1.17
693.20 436.13
24.08 1.17
669,12 43496
2,34 2.58
2,34 2.58
128.00 270,00
128.00 270.00
- 0.30
84.19 70.47
84,19 70.77
669.12 434,96
234 2.58
- 0.30
128.00 270.00
84,19 70.47
883.65 77831
0.07 41,48
113.70 284.57
47.20 56.08
1.48 1,57
162.45
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& Share capital

Authorised Share Capital

As nt April 1, 2020
Iucreasef(decrense) during the year
As nt March 31, 2021
Increascf{decrease} during the year
As ot March 31, 2022

As at April 1, 2020
1nerease/{dectense) during the year
As at March 31, 2021
Increase/{decrense) during (he year
As at March 31, 2022

Terms/vights attached to equity shares

Equity shaees
No. of shares  Rs. In Lukhs
14,060,000 1o.00
lU.l]l],Iiﬂl) 10:00
Il),ﬂl]‘l;ﬂu - 10.04
% Redecmable Nen-Comulutive
Preference Shares

Ne. of shares Rs. In |nlths
3,50,000 350.00
J,SD,I;[N) 350:00
J,SIJ,I;U(} 35“:01}

The Company has enly one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equily shares is entilled (o one vaie per shere, In the event of
Xquidntion of the Camnpany, the holders of equity shares will be entidled 10 recelve rempining sssels of the Company, efter distribution of il preferential mnounts. The

disiribution will be in proportion to the mumber of equity sharcs held by the shareholders

The Preference shares are not convertitle fote equity shares and arc reflected In financial liabilites

Tssued equity capital*
Equity shares af INR 1 each isencd, snbseribed and fully paid

As at April [, 2028
Incraesof{decroase) during the year
Ax at March 31, 2021
Increesc/{deoreaso) during the year
As gt Mareh 31, 2022

*read with note number 34(B) for promator holding details

Shares held by holding compunyz-

Equity shares of Rs. 1 ench fully paid wp
Lemon Tree Holels Limited

Dretadls of shareholders holding more thun 5%5 shares in the compuny:-

Name of the sharcholder

Equity shares of Ks. 1 ench fully paid up
Lemon Tree Helels Limiled .
Rattan Keswani

No. of shares  Rs, In Inkhs
9,34,580 9.35
934,580
$,34,580 0,35
As at As ot
MMarch 31, 2022 Marsh 31, 2021
Na. of shares _ Rs. In lakhs No. of shares Rs, In lakhs
7.80,000 7.00 700,000 7.00
Asat Asol
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No.ofshares % heldasat No, of shares % held as at

Murch 31, 2622 March 31, 2021
700,060 T4,90% 7.00,000 74.50%
234,580 25.10% 254,560 25.10%

The Company has nat lsazed Donus Share, Share for considgration other than cash and has not bonght back shares during the period of five yesrs immedintely proceding the

reporting date.

10 Other equity
Retained Earaings

As at April £, 202¢
Loss for the year

Asg at March 31, 2021
Profit for the year

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Capital Reserve (Equity Component of Reedemmble Preference shares)

As at April 1, 2020
Tnerease/(decroase) during the year
As nt March 31, 2021
Tnereasci(deerense} during the year
Ag al March 3], 2022

Othes reserves
Retained camings

Capital Reserve (Equily Comp of R F shares)

Re. In lakhs

TTHs. Intakhy

52,18

32,18
Asat As ol
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
- Rs. In Jakhs Rs. Inlgkhs
845,80 649.61
5218 52.18
594,98 7ol
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11

12

As at Asal

Borrowings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
’ Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Non-current borrowings

Term Loans

Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

Vehicle loans (Refer note 1 below) 1.32 9,88
Liability compenent of compound financial instroment

Non Convertible preference shares (unsecured){Refer note 2 below) 328,92 321.02
Total non-current borrowings 336.24 330,90
-Current borrowings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long teym loans

Vehicle loans (Refer note 1 below) 1.46 12.97
Total enrrent borrewings 7 1.46 12,97
Less: Amount clubbed under “current borrowings” (1.46) (12.97)
Net current borrowings - -

Term loans
1.} Vehicle loans arg taken from BMW financial services, HDFC Bank and Axis Bank and are secured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicle
acquired out of such loans. Rafe of interest of the loans is 8.70%. The loan is repayable on agreed monthly instaliments.

2.)Liability compenent of compound financial fnstrument represent 5% Redeemable Preference shares, these shares are non-cumulative, non-convertible, non-
participating and carry a preferential right, vis-3-vis équity shares of the Company, with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding
up or repayment of capital and shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47{2) of the Act.

The 5% Redeemable Preference Shares will be redeemed (a) at par, (b) either at Company’s option or Shareholder’s option and (c) enytime after expiry of
one {1) year but on or before expiry of ten (10) years from the date of allotment of the preference shares or on such other terms as varied as per the provisions
of Section 48 of the Act.

3) The Company has nof detaulted in the repaymient of loans and interest as at Balance Sheet date.

Asal As at
Provisions : March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
: Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Provision for gratuity (refer note 24)
Current 1.68 5.67
Non-current 5.92 5.88
' © 760 11.55

Provision for leave benefits

Current 4,88 627

Non-current - -
4.88 6,27

Total current 6.56 11.94
Total non-carrent 5.92 5.88
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13

®

(i)

(i)

14

. As at Asat
Financiai liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs, In lakhs

Borrowings

Loan from holding company - 272

Cash credit from banks {Secured) * 986.11 1,582.68

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refe note 11) ) 1.46 12.97
987.57 1,598.37

* The Cash credit facility and working capital loan from HDFC Bank Limited is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of

8.60% p.a. and is secured by way of'
a) Exclusive charge on entire movable assets of the Company {Current as well as firture assets),
b) Corporate Gaurantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (holdings company).

¢} The Company has used borrowings from banks/financial ingtitutions for the specific purpose of working capital requirement;

As af Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs ‘Rs. In lakhs
Trade payables® '
Trade Payables
-Micro and small enterprises - -
-Other than micro and small enterprises 22,02 5551
22.02 55.51
*refer note 33(c) for ageing outstanding of trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings . - 97.92
- 97.92
Other current Liabilities
Advance from customers - 246
Statutory dues 96.98 52.17
96.98 54.63

(This space has been intentionally lefi biank)
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15 Revenue from operations

Snle of products and services
Consultancy for hotel design, development & management

16 Other income

Excess provision/ credit balances written back
Total

17 Employec benefif expense

Salanice, wages and bonus

Contifbution to pravident fund and other funds
Gratuity expense

Leave compensation expenses

Staff welfaro expenses

Total

13 Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Others

Ligense foos

Rent

Rates and taxes

Communication costs

Traveling and conveyance

Vehigle ruiming and maintenance
Membership and zubseriptions
Trainlng expenses

Advances written off

Tepal and profossional fees

Provision for doubttul debre

Corporaks socl responsibility expense
Loss on sale of property, plant & cquipment
Payment to auditeys

Miscellaneous espenecs

Total

Payment to auditor
Statutory audit feog
Tax audit fees

Other services

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs, Ia [akhs Rs. In lakhs
1,189.70 436.04
1,18%.70 456.04
For the year ended For the year ended
March 38,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lalhs Rs. In lakhs
560 -
5.60 -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2621
Rs. In Inkhs Tts. o lakhs
30353 216.10
446 598
1.48 225
(0.21) ©.71)
051 0.0
300.71 223.67
Far the year ended For the year ended
March 3f, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
0.04 0.83
17.70 13.25
4.89 -
0,33 0.02
.16 0,14
357 044
0.86 113
0.15 0491
340 -
34.33 -
29.2¢ 1252
2291 6.57
602 933
19.26 -
0482 0.82
0.16 061
143.86 45.29
.40 040
012 0.12
030 030
0.82 0.82

{This space has been infentionally Iefl blank)
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20

21

22

Details of CSR expenditure;

{a) Gross amouni required to be spent by the compuny during the year

(b) Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2022:

i) Construction/sequisition of any asset
ii)  On purposes otlier thim (i} above

(b} Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2021;
i} Constructionfacquisition of auy asset

i) On purposes other than (1) above

The Company, through CSR initiative focuses on following areas:
*Viocational skilling of persons with disabilities, for mainstream employment

+Empowerment of weaker seotion of society Lrough education and skill training
+Giiving specinl caro to disabled's, advocacy for inclusion and early identification of person with disabilitics

Finasce cost

Intciest

~ on vehicle loans

- on eredit facilifies from banles

~ on non convertible preference shares
- on Joans from others

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Total

Finance income

Interest Income on
~Income tax refund
-Loan to 1elated party

Earnings per share {Basic And Dilcled)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in Jakhs Rs in lokhs

6.01 9.52
In cash Yet ta be paid in cash

6.02 -
In eash Yet to be paid in cash

.85 -

Far the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

___Re. In lalhs Rs. In lukhs
.88 2.46
115.76 135,52
190 771
019 0.25 .
124,73 145.94
For the year ended Fot the year cnded
March 31, 2022 March 31, 207
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
8.37 1020
362,43 333.08
370.80 343.28
For the year eaded Far the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 3i, 2621
Its, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
1.4 332
15,25 2891
17.1% 32.23

Basic EPS amounts ate caleulated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to squity holders of the Company by the weighted average mumber of equity shares autstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are ealculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holdets of the Company by the weighted avorage number of equity shares outatanding <during the year plus
the weighted average mmmber of equity shires that would be issucd on conversion of alt the difutive poreatial cquity shargs into equity shares.

Profitf{l.oss) afier tax {Rs. In lakhs)
Weighted average Nwnber of equily sharss
Basic & Diluted EFS (Rs.)

For tite year ended
Mezrch 31, 2022
Rs. In lakhs
197.1%
9,34,580

For the year ended
March 31,2021
Rs, Infakhs

203.47)
934,580
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23. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
conirol of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur, The estimates and
undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Estimation of Uncertainties related to global health pandemic on COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic affected major economic and financial markets, and virtually all industries and
governments faced challenges associated with the economic conditions resulting from efforis to address
it. As the spread of the pandemic increased, entities experienced conditions often associated with a general
economic downturn. In many countries, there were severe disruption in regular business operations due to
lockdown, travel bans, quarantines and other emergency measures. Considering multiples waves of
pandemic, these continues to be a particularly high degree of uncertainty about the ultimate trajectory of the
pandemic and the path and time needed for a refurn to a “steady state.” The continuation of these
circumstances could have a prolonged negative impact on the financial condition and results of operations,

For the year ended March 31, 2022. the Company has considered possible effects due to COVID 19 in its
assessment of the going concern assumption and liquidity position for the next one year, recoverability of
assets comprising Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and trade receivables as at the balance sheet date.

The Management have assessed the effect of these macro-economic conditions into their estimates of firture
cash flows to make good-faith estimates for determining the values of the Company’s assets including
investments and liabilities. The Management has carefully considered these unique circumstances and risk
exposures when analyzing how recent events may affect their financial reporting to develop estimates
considering all available relevant information.

While assessing the recaverable amount of Intangible assets the Company has used significant assumptions
such as hotel occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, términal growth rate of the hotels to which these
Intangible assets related fo. For assessing the recoverable amount of trade receivables, the Company has
calculated the expected credit loss from the debtors considering amount to be realized from them in future
after factoring the impact on credit risk due to COVID 19, s

Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of known events arising from COVID
19 pandemic in the preparation of theses financial statements. The associated economic impact of the
pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict including the degree to which
governments may further restrict business and other activities. The impact assessment of COVID 19 is a
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and actual results may
differ materially from these estimates. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial
statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise. The management believes that
it will not have negative impact on future cash flows and the financial position of the Company.

Based on a collective assessment of the above factors management believes that the Company will continue
as a going concem for the next ane year, has enough liquidity to meet its obligations and based on {ajrvalue
assessment will be able to recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022. F =
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Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of intangible assets

Each license and franchise agreement is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent
of the cash inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company
assesses the carrying amount of license and franchise agreement (CGU) to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrving amount of CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, An
impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of fiture revenue, operating margins, growth
rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Particulars _ As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate (pre fax rate of WACC) 12.50%
Long term growth rate 5.50%

As at March 31, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and the
change -in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19 is
unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU,

b. TL.oss allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Company’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the likelihood of
consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19, Basis this assessment, the allowance
for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2022 is considered adequate.

24. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Rs. in lakhs
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Gratuity plan 7.60 11.55
Total 7.60 11.55

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The
Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis,
valuation as per the Projected unit credit method. 7
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2022:

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income Rs. in lakhs
Return on '
plan assets  Actuarial Actuarial
Net Sub-total (excluding changes changes Sub- Contribu
Aprill, Serviee . included Benefits amounts  arising from  arising from  Expericace total R Mareh 31,
interest . : . . . . N tions by
2021 cost expense 1T profit  paid included in  changes in changesin  adjustments  included emplover 2022
P or loss net demographic financial in OCI ploy
inferest  assumptions  assumptions
expense)
Defined
benefit 11,55 0.88 0.60 1.48 (3.85) - - (0.23) (1.35) {1.58) - 7.60
obligation : .
Fair value
of plan “ - - - - - - - - - - -
assets
Benefit = 1155 088 040 148 (3.85) - - (0.23) (1.35) {1.58) - .60

liability
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2021

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss Remeasnrement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income Rs. in lakhs
Return on
plan assets  Actuarial Actuarial
Net Sub-total (exelnding changes changes Sub- Contributi
April 1, Service interest included Benefits amounts  arising from  arising from  Experience total ons b March 31,
2020 cost in profit paid  includedin  changes in changesin  adjustments incinded Y 2021
expense - . . . employer
or loss : net demaographic financial in GCI
inferest  assumptions  assumptions
expense)
Defined
benefit 16.92 1.49 0.76 225 (6.92) - - 0,10 (0.81) 0.71) - 11.55
obligation
Fair value
of plan - - - - - - - - - - - -
assets
Bemefit o0 149 076 225 (6.92) - - 0.10 (0.81) (0.71) . 11.55

liability
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are
shown below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

% %
Discount rate 6.10% 5.20%
Future salary increases 5.00% 5.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below:

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sengsitivity Level ' 1% increase 1% decrease 1% 1% decrease
' increase
Impact on defined benefit
obligation (0.24) 0.26 0.26 0.24)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below:

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2021 2021 2021 2021
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% 1% decrease
increase
Impact on defined benefit
obligation (0.26) 0.27 0.27 (0.26)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on

defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period.
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended

Duration {Years) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 1.73 5.52

2 1.66 1.28

3 : 136 1.13

4 1.05 0.95

5 0.85 0.86

Above 5 2.88 1.40

Total expected payments 9.52 11.14

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
{March 31, 2021; 4 years).

25. Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital aceount and not provided
for:

"~ At March 31, 2022, the Company did not have any contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for,
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26. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties

Holding company - Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Fellow subsidiary ‘ = Jora Hotels Private Limited
Enterprise in which Holding company has ~ Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

significant influence

Key management personnel : - Mr. Rattan Keswani (Whole Time Director till March
31, 2022)
- Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Director)
- Mr. Kapil Sharma (Director)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

Rs. in Lakhs
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Enterprise
in which
. For the year - Holding Fellow Key Holding
Particulars ) Management | company
ended Company Subsidiary
. Personnel has
significant
influence
Transactions during the vear™*
Repayment of loan given
Tora Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2022 - 142.00 - -
March 31, 2021 - 620.00 - -
Loan given
Iora Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2022 - - - -
March 31, 2021 - 125.00 - -
Repayment of loan taken
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited March 31, 2022 2.72 - - -
March 31, 2021 - - - -
Training expense
and Lea}de.rs Learning India March 31, 2022 ) ) . 3.67
Private Limited
March 31, 2021 - - - -
Rent expense
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited March 31, 2022 4.89 - - “
March 31, 2021 - - - -
License fees paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited March 31, 2022 17.70 - - -
March 31, 2021 13.25 - - -
Interest income .
Tora Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2022 13.73 - - -
March 31, 2021 26.74 - - -
Interest expense
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited March 31, 2022 0.17 - - -
March 31, 2021 0.24 - - -
Salary expense
Rattan Keswani March 31, 2022 - - 169.60 -
March 31, 2021 - - 127,11 -
*Transactions are exclusive of GST wherever applicable. J,
e 22
iy D380
7277
3 DA
e {[ New Daihi }
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Enterprise
in which
Particulars For the year Holding Fellow Manlacgegm ent c};?rfg:;gy
ended Company Subsidiary Personnel has
significant
influence
Balances as at year e_nd
Interest acerued but not
due on borrowings
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited | March 31, 2022 - - . -
March 31, 2021 97.94 - - -
Interest accrued but not
due on loans given
lora Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2022 - 84.19 - -
March 31, 2021 - 70.47 - -
Trade payable
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited March 31, 2022 6.46 - - -
March 31, 2021 43.56 - - -
Mind Leaders Learning India
Private Limited March 31, 2022 - - - .
March 31, 2021 - - - 324
Loan given
ITora Hotels Private Limited March 31, 2022 - 128.00 - -
March 31, 2021 - 270.00 - -

Salary payable

Rattan Keswani

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.
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217. Fair values

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respect of each ciass of financial asset, financial Hability and equity instrument.

a. Financial instruments by category

Rs. inlakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Ameortised Cost
Financial assets . :
Trade receivables - 669.12 - 434.96
Security deposits - - - 0.30
Interest accrued but not N 8410 ) 70.47
due
Loans and advances - 128,00 - 270,00
Cash and cash Equivalents - 234 - 258
Total financial assets - 883.65 - 778.30
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 1,317.81 - 1,929.27
Trade payable - 22.02 - 55.51
Other financial liabilities - 1530 | ; 97.92
Total financial liabilities 1,339.84 2,082.71

b. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows;
iy Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3 _
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or Hability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

There are no financial assest’s and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 meagured af
value.
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The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other cuirent financial assets
and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its
operations. The Company’s financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a financial
risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for
the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that
the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk
objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and
payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fitture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate
to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Trade receivables and security deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of each customer is assessed and credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security
deposits are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual basis.
In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous group and assessed for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 28. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets,

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate

L
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because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency,
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including loans to related parties, deposits
with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
ol each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021 is the carrying amount as illustrated in Note 28.

Ry, in lakhs

Ageing March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Not due : - -

0-60 days past due 512.84 306,88
61-120 days past due ' 135.65 22.78
121-180 days past due 20.63 9.45
180-365 days past due ‘ - 63.17
365-730 days past due - 32.68

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration
of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be Jow. The Company has access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders. The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of
the reporting periods.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on

contractual undiscounted payments.
Rs. inlakhs
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On

Less than 3

3to 12

lte5s

>5

‘demand months months years years Total
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Borrowings (other than 986.11 0.23 122 133 . 988.89
preference shares)
Trade payables 22.02 - - - - 2202
Financial liabilities - - - - - -
1,008.13 0.23 1.22 1.33 - 1,010.91
Year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 _
Borrowings (other than 1,585.40 232 1066 997 - 1,608.35
preference shares)
Trade payables 55.51 - - - - 3551
Financial liabilities 97.92 - - - - 9792
1,738.83 2,32 10.66 9.97 - 1,761.78

29. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings (other than preference share) 988.89 1,608.35
Trade payable 22.02 55.51
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 2.34 2.58
Net debt 1013.25 1,666.44
Total capital(Including preference share) ' 1,237.25 1,032.16
Capital and net debt 2,230.53 2,683.29
Gearing ratio 44.53% 61.53%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made. in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital ltgmﬁs(f"
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ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
There is no unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date.

Segment reporting:

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single
unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind AS 108

—“Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as per

the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue.

The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19 -
and has made detailed assessment of its going concern assumption, liguidity pesition for next one year
and believes that the Company can meet all its obligations with the support of the parent company.,
Also, the parent company confirms that they provided unconditional and irrevocable financial support
by way of continuous investment in the Company in the form of equity investment and unsecured loan,
as and when required. In view of the above, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern

basis.

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterp:;ises as per MSMED Aet, 2006.

March
31,2022

March
31,2021

the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting vear

Nil

Nil

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

Nil

Nil

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.

Nil

Nil

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year; and

Nil

Nil

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006

Nil
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34.  Supplementary information as per requirement of Schedule II1 of the Companies Act.
A) Ratio Analysis and its elements
s, March March 31, | %
No. | Ratio Numerator | Denominater | 31, 2022 | 2021 Variance | Reason for variance
Increase due to repayment of
Current Current Current current borrowings from funds
1 | ratio assets Habilities 0.94 0.64 | 47.06% | generated from cperations
Debt - | Increase due to repayment of
equity Shareholder “current borrowings from funds
2 | ratio Total Debt | equity 0.80 1.56 | (48.70%) | generated from operations
Debt Earnings
service available Lower mainly because principal
coverage | for debt demanded by lender for borrowings
3 | ratio service debt service 0.96 1.85 | (48.23%) | payable on demand
Average Previous year the company’s
Return on | Net profit sharcholders business was adversely atfected by
4 | equity after taxes | equity 24% (25%) | 196.37% | COVID 19 resulting in logses
inventory
turnover COGS & Average
5 | ratio Sales Inventory NA NA NA
Trade
receivable Avg,
turnover Net credit accounts Increase in revenue has lead to
6 | ratio sales receivable 2,16 0.90 | 139.69% | increase in trade receivables
Trade
payables
turnover Netcredit | Average trade
7 | ratio purchase payable NA NA NA
Net capital
turnover Working Increase in revenue levels as
8 | ratio Net Sales capital 17.75 0.69 | 2452.62% | compared to previous vear
Previous year the company’s
Net profit business was adversely affected by
9 | ratio Net Profit, | Net sales 16% {45%) | 136.80% | COVID 19 resulting in losses
Return on Previous year the company’s
“capital Capital business was adversely affected by
10 | employed | EBIT employed 33% {36)% | 191.05% | COVID 19 resulting in losses
Income
generated
from
investments | Time
Return on | (Fixed weighted
11 | investment | Deposits) investments NA NA NA

(1) Earning for debt gervice = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets etc.

(i) Debt service = interest and lease payments + principal repayments.
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B) Detail of shareholding of promoters of the Company

As at Mareh 31, 2022

S.No. | Promoter Number of | % of Change | Number | Percentage | %
Name shares at total during of shares | of Total change
the Share the at the end | shares during
beginning Capital | year* of the the year
of the year year 2022
2021
1 Lemon Tree 700,000 74.90% - 700,600 74.90% -
Hotels Limited
As at March 31, 2021
S.No. | Promoter Number of | % of Change | Number Percentage | %
Name shares at total during of shares | of Total change
the Share the at the end | shares during
beginning Capital | year* of the year the year
of the year 2021
2020
1 Lemon tree 700,000 [ 74.90% - 700,000 74.90% -
Hotels Limited

C) Disclosure of loans or advances given by the Company in the nature of loans granted to promoters,
directors, KMPs and related parties.

Rs. in Lalkhs

Type of Borrower

As at
March 31,2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

Amount of loan

% of total Loans

Amount of

loan outstanding

% of total Loans

Loan to promoters

Loan to directors

Loan to KMPs

Loan to related parties
-fellow subsidiaries

128.00

100%

Total

128.00

100%

Lt
A ST
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D) Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

As at March 31, 2022

Rs, in lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2
years

2-3 years

More
than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed _
| Trade receivables —considered good

669.12

- 669.12

(il} Undisputed
Trade Receivables —which have
significant increase in credit risk

1.31

17.32

5.45

- 24.08

(iii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables —credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—onsidered good

(v} Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

Unbilled Revenue

Rs. In lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

Less than
6 months

¢ months -
1 year

12
years

2-3 years

More
than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed-
‘Trade receivables —considered good

330,11

63.17

32.68

- 434.96

(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables —which have
significant increase in credit risk

1.17

- 1.Y7

(iii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables —credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

Unbilled Revenue .

it




Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

E) Trade payables ageing schedule based:

As at March 31, 2022 Rs. In lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 More than
1-2 years 2-3 years
vear 3 years

Particulars
Total

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 10.35 - 0.03 0.24 10.62
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small - - - - -

enterprises
Unbilled Dues 11.40 - - - 11,40
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. In lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and smalil enterprises
Total outstanding dues of :
creditors . other than micro 23.36 29.33 0.20 0.19 45.45
enterprises and small enterprises '

Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small - - - - -
enterprises

Unbilled Dues 243 - - - . 243

F) Other Statutory Information

{i). The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the
financial year.

(ii). The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. ‘

(iii).  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

(iv).  The Company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off.
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(v). The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registeg




Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(vi).

(vii).

(viii),

(i)

beyond the statutory period.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the prescribed disclosures of
Schedule IIT are not required to be given.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or,

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

35. Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements.

For JDP & Associates
Firm Registration No. 026828N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Carnation Hotels Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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Jatin Kumar Patanjali G. Keswani Kapil Sharma
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 531072 Din: 00002974 Din: 00352890
UDIM 2083 IBILALLERESAY S,
Place :Nev.v Delhi Place :New Dethi
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